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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Transhealth Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Transhealth Private Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information, .

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAF) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the¢W$ Report, but does not include the financial
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Transhealth Private Limited, on
the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Cont’d)

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Director's Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will -always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

» [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

of internal control; e
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Transhealth Private Limited, on
the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Cont’d)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are
not applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section
2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial

statements;

Except for the matters stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion, proper books of
account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133

of the Act;
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pendent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Transhealth Private Limited, on

the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Cont’d)

e)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in, paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and

-paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)

V.

Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls With reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure Il wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us

the Company, as detailed in note 39 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigation on its financial position as at 31 March 2025;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 40(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
InAaned ar invested (pither from horrowed funds or socuritioc promium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person or entity, including foreign
entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 40 (vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries; and

C. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2025;
and
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Transhealth Private Limited, on
the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Cont’d)

vi.  As stated in note 42 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included
test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2024, has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts and payroll records which have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, other than
the consequential impact of the exception given below. Furthermore, except for matter
mentioned below the audit trail has been preserved by the: Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

The audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting software used for
maintenance of books of accounts by the Company to log any direct data changes. Further,
the audit trail pertaining to accounting software used for maintaining payroll records have not
been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants - =
Firm’s Registration No/Z004876N/N500013

\

B

Kartik Gogia

Partner

Membership No.: 512371
UDIN: 25512371BMNUEX5641

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 September 2025
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Annexure [ referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Transhealth Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(iii)

(a)

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment,capital work-in-progress
and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets under which
the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment,
capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets were verified during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than proﬁerties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee), disclosed in Note 4C to the financial statements, are held in the name of the

Company.

The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records.

As disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned with a
working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores by banks based on the security of current assets.
The quarterly statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company
with such banks and such statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company
for the respective periods, which were not subject to audit.

The Company has not made investments in, provided any security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, and limited liability partnerships during
the year. Further, the Company has provided guarantee and granted unsecured loans to
companies or any other parties during the year, in respect of which:

The Company has provided loans and guarantee to Others during the year as per details
given below:

Chartered Accountants



Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Transhealth Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Cont’d)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Guarantees Loans

Aggregate amount provided during the year (Rs.):

Integris Medtech Limited 14,000.00
Translumina Therapeutics Private Limited 800.00
Others 2.58

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of
above cases (Rs.):

Integris Medtech Limited 14,000.00
Translumina Therapeutics Private Limited 800.00
Others 3.22

(b)

(vi)

in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
guarantees provided and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal has been
stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal are regular. Further, no interest is receivable

on such loans.
There is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such other parties.

The Company has not granted any loans which has fallen due during the year. Further, no
fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue loans that existed as at the

beginning of the year.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, which are repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of guarantees provided by it, as
applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section
185 and section 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted and security provided by it.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed

statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate author,ihes by the Company, though there have been slight
delays in a few cases. Further, no‘undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a pefiod of more than six months from the date they became

payable. \ |

|
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Transhealth Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Cont’d)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no
statutory dues referred in sub-clause (@) which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except for the following:

(Amounts in Rs. Lakhs)

Name of Nature of Gross Amount | Period to Forum Remarks
the Statue | Dues amount Paid which where | ifany
(in Rs. Lakhs) | under amount dispute is
protest | relates pending
Income Tax | Income Tax 99.19 - Assessment | Assessing
Act, 1961 year 2023- Officer
L 2024 ]

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no transactions
were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations received
from banks/ financial institution and/or other lenders and representation received from the
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we repart that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) Inouropinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and accuiding to the Information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company does not
have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e)
and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (@)  To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
period covered by our audit.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c)  According to the information and expfa_na@'iﬁn?gi_\ren to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Compa_ny-:?the’r'e are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year. f ( \ =

i
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Transhealth Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Cont’d)

{xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

{xix)

(xx)

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act. '

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to and
consequently, does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC).

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as
and when they fall due. -

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than
ongoing project as at the end of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ﬁ;\ND—I":—?\_\.\
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Transhealth Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2025 (Cont'd)

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

=

Kartik Gogia D
Partner R
Membership No.: 512371

UDIN : 25512371BMNUEX5641

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 September 2025
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Annexure Il

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Transhealth Private Limited (‘the Company’) as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company as at that date

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by
the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company;, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or tlmely detection of unauthorlsed acqui I(@ls\ or disposition of the company's assets that could

Chartered Accountants



Annexure I to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of
Transhealth  Private  Limited on  the financial statements for the vear ended

31 March 2025 (Cont’d)
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate interpal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountan\ts
Firm's Registration No.: 0

Kartik Gogia m%_ s
Partner
Membership No.: 512371

UDIN: 25512371BMNUEX5641

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 September 2025




Transhealth Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
CIN: U33309DL2020PTC364238

(Al amaunts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
i il NoteS 34 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 4,633.76 4,335.40
Capital work-in-progress 4A 86.02 -
Other Intangible assets 4B 0.69 1.53
Right-of-use assets 4C 725.85 269.78
Financial assets .

i} Other financial assets 5 92.59 117.43
Non-current tax assets (net) 6 109.19 -
Other non-current assets 7 895.44 883.96
Total non-current assets 6,443.54 5,608.10
Current assets
Inventories 8 2,441.67 2,325.16
Financial assets

i) Trade receivables 9 577.36 1,863.36

ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 38.63 59.29

iii) Bank balances other than (i) above 11 45.45 900.00

iv) Loans 12 3.22 0.64

v) Other financial assets 13 372.96 542.66
Other current assets 14 713.82 748.81
Total current assets 4,193.11 6,439.92
Total assets 10,636.65 12,048.02
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 300.00 300.00
Other equity 16 1,807.74 1,054.78
Total equity 2,107.74 1,354.78
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings 17 1,009.82 5,586.44

ii) Lease liabilities 18 44.03 -
Provisions 19 28.32 23.92
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 32 188.42 158.21
Total non-current liabilities 1,270.59 5,768.57
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings 17 5,923.37 1,801.32

ii) Lease liabilities 18 25.06 19.99

iiiy Trade payables 20

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 8.94 11.58
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 246.14 582.29

iv) Other financial liabilities 21 224.72 389.19
Other current liabilities 22 820.63 2,004.69
Current tax liabilities (net) 23 - 16.19
Provisions 19 9.46 0.42
Total current liabilities 7,258.32 4,924.67
Total liabilities 8,528.91 10,693.24
Total equity and liabilities 10,636.65 12,048.02

3

Material accounting policy information

The material accounting policy information and other explanatory information are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Transhealth Pfjvate Limited

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Indranil =, Gurmit Sing

Director === Director

DIN: 06692898 121V DIN 00821824
e N

Kartik Gogia
Partner
Membership No.: 512371

Place: New Delhi : Place: New Delhi

Place: Gurugram -
Date: 22 September 2025 Date: 22 September 2025

Date: 22 September 2025




Transhealth Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

CIN: U33309DL2020PTC364238
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

FaneeE Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue
Revenue from operations 23A 7,938.92 3,763.97
Other income 24 277.03 127.55
Total income 8,215.95 3,891.52
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25 4,711.55 1,635.41
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 26 (209.67) (341.14)
Employee benefits expense 27 956.82 636.84
Finance costs 28 436,22 614.29
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 331.58 287.69
Other expenses 31A 621.27 311.89
Total expenses 6,847.77 3,144.98
Profit before exceptional items and tax 1,368.18 746.54
Exceptional items 31B 465.89 -
Profit before tax 902.29 746.54
Tax expense 32
Current tax (including earlier years) 129.04 113.97
Deferred tax 30.21 60.75
Total tax expenses 159.25 174.72
Net Profit for the year 743.04 571.82
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans 10.65 (4.58)

Income tax relating to above item (1.83) 0.79
Total comprehensive Income for the year, after tax 751.86 568.03
Earning per equity share (Rs. 10 per share) 33
Basic (Rs.) 2477 18.93
Diluted (Rs.) 24.77 18.93

3

Material accounting policy information

The material accounting policy information and other explanatory information are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Kartik Gogia
Partner
Membership No.: 512371

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 September 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Transhealth Private Limited

Indranil Mukherjee
Director
DIN : 06692898

Place: New Delhi

Date: 22 September 2025

Place: New Delhi
Date: 22 September 2025




Transhealth Private Limited

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

CIN: U33309DL2020PTC364238
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

A, Cash Nows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Non-cash adjustments
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Liabilities written back
Inlerest income
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (net)
Loss on disposal of PPE

Allowance for expected credit loss and impairment for deposits

Finance costs
Share based payment expenses
Inventory written off
Operating profit before working capital changes

Movement in working capital
Movement in inventories
Movement in trade receivables
Movement in loans
Movement in other assels
Movement in trade payables
Movement in other liabilities
Movement in provisions

Cash flow from operating activities
Income tax paid (net)

Net cash from operating activities

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including intangible assets, capital work in progress & capital advances)

Interest received
Movement in bank deposits (net)
Net cash from/ {(used in) investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Repayment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Proceeds from short erm borrowings (net)
Finance cost paid
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities

Net Change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Closing cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include (refer note 10)
Balances with banks in current accounts
Cash and bank balances

Details of non-cash investing and financing activities

o]

(A+B+C)

90229 746.54
331.58 287.69
(0.15) (6.43)
(36.02) (66.17)
9.22 (26.36)
2,02 -
45,69 =
436.22 614.29
527 =
465.89 -
2,162.01 1,549.56
(582.40) (1,441.03)
1,231.09 (944.75)
(2.58) 0.51
(120.95) (457.30)
(340.19) 25472
(1,184.06) 2,050.99
34.75 9.18
1,197.67 1,021.88
(223.05) (110.95)
974.62 910.93
(912.58) (1,124.40)
39.66 39.47
1,148.56 {835.24)
275.64 {1,920.17)
- 606.01
(28.71) (69.27)
(4.33) (0.73)
(4,576.62) (207.72)
4,022.05 1,042.68
{682.31) (493.17)
{1,270.92) 887.80
(20.66) (121.44)
59.29 180.73
38.63 59.29
38.63 59.29
38.63 59.20

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Acquisition of right of use asseis

Notes:

487 46

(a) The above Cash Flow Stalement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7} ‘Statement of Cash Flow’

(b) Figures represented in brackets are cash outflows.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
As at 31 March 2025

01 April 2024 Addition Cash flows Interest expense 31 March 2025
Borrowings (non-current and current) (refer note 17) 7,487.77 - (554.57) - 6,933.20
Lease liabililies 19.98 78.81 (34.04) 4.33 69.08
Interes| acerued bul not due on borrowings (refer note 21) 340.31 - (682.31) 431.24 89.24
Total liabilities for fi ing activities 7,848.06 78.81 {1,270.92) 435.57 7,091.52
As at 31 March 2024
' 01 April 2023 Addition Cash flows Interest expense/ 31 March 2024
repayment
Borrowings (non-current and current) (refer note 17) £,046.80 - 1,440.97 - 7.487.77
Lease liabilities 79.25 - (60.00) 073 19.98
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (refer nate 21) 221.01 - (483.17) 612.47 340.31
Total liabilities for financing activities 6,347.06 - 887.80 613.20 7,848.08

The summary of material accounting policies and other explanalory information are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001078N/N50001

Gogia
Partnar
Membership No :512371

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 September 2025

ar and an behalf of Board of Directors of

rapshealth Pri
/ulx%w':

Indranil Mukh@rjea
Director
DIN Number: 05592

Place: New Delhi

Date: 22 September 2025 i

Place: New Delhi
Date: 22 Seplember 2025




Transhealth Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

CIN: U33309DL2020PTC364238
(All amounls in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital Notes
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 15 300.00 300.00
Issued during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 300.00 300.00
B. Other equity
Particulars Other equity

Other Total

Notes Retained earnings Deemed Equity comprehensive
income

Balance as at 31 March 2023 487.99 = (0.45) 487.54
{’rolit for lhe year 571.82 - - 571.82
Olher comprehensive income - - {4.58) (4.58)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1,059.81 + (5.03) 1,054.78
Profit for the year T43.04 - - 743.04
ESOP charge from Holding Company 16 - 110 - 1.10
Other comprehensive income - - 8.82 8.82
Balance as at 31 March 2025 1,802.85 1.10 3.78 1,807.74

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regislralion No.: 001076N/N500013

Kartik Gogia
Partner
Membership No.: 512371

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 September 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Transhealth PrivatejLimited

Indranil Mukherjee
Director

DIN Number: 06692898 -~

Place: New Delhi

Date: 22 September 2025

Plagé: New Delhi
Date: 22 September 2025




a)

Transhealth Private Limited
Material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended

31 March 2025
Company overview

Transhealth Private Limited (the ‘Company’), having Corporate Identification Number ('CIN')
U33309DL2020PTC364238 is a private company domiciled in India and was incorporated on 2 June 2020. The
registered address of the Company is 1st Floor, Metro Tower LSC, M.O.R Land, New Rajinder Nagar, New
Delhi -110060. The objective of the Company is to be engaged in the business of manufacturing of PTCA
Balloon Catheter, including Stent delivery system.

Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS') as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR’) (its functional and presentation currency) and
all values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs or decimals thereof, except where otherwise indicated. Adding
the individual figures may therefore not always result in the exact total given.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authorized and approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 22 September 2025.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost
basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value.

(iii) Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle
and other criteria set out in Division Il of Schedule lll of the Act. The Company has identified twelve months as

its operating cycle.
Material accounting policy information

The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised as below:

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price,

borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are

recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, useful lives and residual value)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method based
on estimated useful life of the asset after considering the residual value as set out in Schedule Il to the Act

referred above.

Asset class [30 7 N\o\ Useful life

Building [ 3o 60years  Zin Piip\
Plant & Equipment 15 years NG\
Furniture and fixtures 10 years ' b




b)

c)

Transhealth Private Limited
Material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended

31 March 2025 (Cont’d)

Asset class Useful life ]
Office Equipment 5 years
| Computers 3 years

Depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or till the date the
asset is sold or disposed.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

De-recognition )
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant component initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress are stated at cost net of impairment loss, if any. Assets in the course of construction
are capitalised in capital work in progress account. At the point when an asset is capable of operating in the
manner intended by management, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment. Costs (net of income) associated with the commissioning of the asset, including the
expenditure incurred on trial runs (net of trial run receipts), are capitalised up to the date asset is ready for its

intended use.

Expenses incurred relating to project during the project under development stage prior to its intended use, are
considered as pre-operative expenses and disclosed under “Capital work in progress”.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized upon
transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those services. Revenue is measured net of rebates, discounts
and taxes. The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each component of the revenue transaction

as set out below.

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when goods are transferred for a price, all significant risk and rewards

of the ownership have been transferred to the customer, no effective control is retained with respect to goods
transferred to a degree usually associated with ownership, no significant uncertainty exists regarding the
amount of consideration and collectability of amount is reasonably assured. The Company considers the terms
of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price
is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes).

A receivable is recognised by the Company when the control is transferred as this is the case of point in time
recognition where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required. When either
party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the payment.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis considering the amount outstanding and rate applicable.

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR) i.e., the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Export Incentives

—,

Revenue in respect of export incentives is recognised when the right to receive the same is establ_fghéqu: "“}?\\\
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Transhealth Private Limited
Material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended

31 March 2025 (Cont’d)

Right of use assets and lease liabilities

A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of leases
The Company entered into leasing arrangements for land. The assessment of the lease is based on several

factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option
to extend/purchase etc.

i) Right of use assets

Recognition and initial measurement

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance
sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the
asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement

date (net of any incentives received).

Subsequent measurement
The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date

to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company
also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

ii) Lease liabilities

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily
available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable payments
based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made
and increased for interest. It is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is

reflected in the right-of-use asset.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis,
in respect of raw materials and stores and spares. Cost includes freight, taxes and duties and excludes duties
and taxes that are recoverable subsequently from tax authorities.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision for slow moving/ non-moving inventory is estimated and made by the management, wherever
necessary.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax
except to the extent it recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax comprises the tax payable on taxable income for the year. Current tax is computed in accordance
with relevant tax regulations. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax
amount expected to be paid or received after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. Current
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other

comprehensive income or in equity).

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recogriset =

se.the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously:
2

Deferred tax is recognised in respect ﬁ{f;; mporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting pv’gt_pbses and corrgsponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are
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Transhealth Private Limited
Material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended

31 March 2025 (Cont’d)

recognised on unused tax loss, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent it is
probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. This is assessed based
on the Company'’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses
and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will

allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. Deferred
tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present
values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

o Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or

o Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain,
related asset is disclosed.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-

term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Share based payment expenses
Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Employee Stock Option Scheme ('ESOP').

The grant-date fair value of share-based payment arrangements wherein it grants options to purchase shares
of its Holding Company to the eligible employees of the Company under the Employee Stock Option Scheme
(ESOS') is recognised as an employee stock option scheme expense in the Statement of profit and loss, over
the vesting period of the options, with a corresponding increase in liability towards the holding company.

If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting period, based on
the best available estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Upon exercise of share options,
the proceeds received, net of any directly attributable transaction costs, are allocated to share capital up to the
nominal (or par) value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as share premium.

earnings per share as shares of the Holding Company needs to be issued to the employees as per th
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Transhealth Private Limited )
Material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended

31 March 2025 (Cont’d)

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans
as under:

Defined contribution plan
The Company has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund and pension scheme. The contribution

made by the Company in respect of these plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan
The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees.

Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference
to the employee’s length of service and last drawn salary. The liability recognised in the statement of financial
position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting
date. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial
gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in other coriprehensive income.

Foreign currency

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statement of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements have
been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, by applying the exchange rates on

the foreign currency amounts at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at
the balance sheet date are converted to functional ¢urrency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items
denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at

the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates

different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in
the year in which they arise.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.

Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortised cost — A ‘financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting cqntractual cash

flows, and
o Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised @) ‘”%I;.
effective interest rate (EIR) method. ﬁ“fff & Ye
:
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Transhealth Private Limited
Material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended

31 March 2025 (Cont’d)

De-recognition of financial assets
Afinancial asset is de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The deposits with mature of more than 12 months has been classified as non-

current assets.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred except for borrowing for
acquisition of qualifying assets, which are capitalised upto the date, the asset is ready for its intended use. A
qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for

events including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for

the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
e Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic inter 3 Pri;

A fair value measurement of a -ftna@mal asset considers a market participant's ability Qwﬁenerate <
economic benefits by using the é&im Itsthighest and best use or by selling it to another mark tm%nﬂaipamd

that would use the asset in its/ ﬁlgﬁest and’ best use.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

* Llevel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company. At each reporting date, the
Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured
or re-assessed as per the accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied
in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant

documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy

as explained above
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss ('ECL') model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is provided for when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and then, factors historical trends and forward looking information. An impairment loss is
recognised either based on the 12 months’ probability of default or lifetime probability of default.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit
losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of such

receivables.

Other financial assets
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has

increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is considered to be the Board of Directors who
makes strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the

operating segments.
Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, esti
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, andﬁn )

7,
i/ @
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Significant management judgements

a) Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based
on an assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax

assets can be utjlized.

b) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

c) Leases — The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind
AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in
assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company
determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

_In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to
exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option
to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable

period of a lease.

d) Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities.
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

. Significant estimates

a) Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed
over expected life, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management
assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. Further, management also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk
associated with industry and country in which the customer operates.

b) Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future
salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual
defined benefit expenses.

c) Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the

utilisation of assets.

Recent Accounting pronouncements:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,

2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2024. As part of the transition to Ind AS , the Company has also considered following
amendments (where relevant) in the preparation of its financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 116 — Lease liability in a sale and leaseback:

The amendments require an entity to recognise lease liability including variable lease payments which are not
linked to an index or a rate in a way that does not result in a gain on the Right of Use asset it retains.

Introduction of Ind AS 117:

MCA notified Ind AS 117, acpmprehensive standard that prescribes recognition, measurement, and disetas 3

requirements to avoid diversities in-practice for accounting insurance contracts. It applies to all com‘pacﬁes—m ,,i‘.\\.
to all “insurance contractsfregardless of the issuer. However, Ind AS 117 is not applicable to entltres that are, _\
insurance companies registered with IRDAI. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncemefits anl basqu) }
on its evaluation, has determlned that these amendments do not have any impact on the financial siatements S

- A
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Amendments to Standards issued but not yet effective
Lack of exchangeability — Amendments to Ind AS 21:

MCA via notification dated 7 May 2025, announced amendments to Ind AS 21 “The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates” to specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how
it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require
disclosure of information that enables users of its financial statements to understand how the currency not being
exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s financial performance,
financial position and cash flows. The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2025. The amendments are not expected to have a material

impact on the company's financial statements.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants -
Amendments to Ind AS 1

MCA via notification dated 13 August 2025 announced amendments to Ind AS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”, which elaborate on guidance set out in Ind AS 1 by:

« clarifying that the right to defer settlement of a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period;

a) must have substance, and b) must exist at the end of the reporting period;

« stating that management's expectations around whether they will defer settlement or not does not impact the
classification of the liability;

* including requirements for liabilities that can be settled using an entity's own instruments; and

* stating that at the reporting date, the entity does not consider covenants that will need to be complied

with in the future when considering the classification of the debt as current or non-current. These amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025 and are to be applied retrospectively.
The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statement in the

period of initial application.
Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to Ind AS 7 and Ind AS 107

MCA via notification dated 13 August 2025 announced amendments to Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”
and Ind AS107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” which introduced disclosure requirements with the

objective to enable users of financial statements to assess how supplier finance arrangements affect an entity's
liabilities, cashflows and exposure to liquidity risk. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1April 2025. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the

Company's financial statements.
International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules - Amendments to Ind AS 12

MCA via notification dated 13 August 2025 announced amendments to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes” which

includes:
+ a temporary exception to the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the implementation of
the Pillar

Two model rules; and _

+ additional disclosure requirements targeted at a reporting entity's exposure to income taxes in periods in which
the Pillar

Two Model legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in effect.

The disclosure requirements are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025. The
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

AANDIE N =]
| & (New Delhi
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4. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Particulars Building A:,sz?t aru:! Fur;;::.:’r::nd qu:;:::ms Computers Vehicles Total
Gross block .
As at 01 April 2023 536.86 3,252.32 66.26 26.52 17.08 - 3,899.04
Additions during the year 112.63 681.51 17.06 9.08 10.13 - 830.42
As at 31 March 2024 649.49 3,933.83 83.32 35.61 27.21 - 4,729.46
Additions during the year - 491,67 2.00 - 212 7.93 503.72
Disposals (0.35) (4.83) (1.08) - - - (6.34)
As at 31 March 2025 649.14 4,420.57 84,26 35.61 2933 7.93 5,226.64
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2023 29.65 86.32 6.87 4.91 6.41 - 134.16
Charge for lhe year 18.96 220.36 713 5.89 7.46 - 259.80
As at 31 March 2024 48.61 306.68 14.00 10.90 13.87 - 394.06
Charge for the year 2047 256.09 8.37 6.79 7.51 0.13 299.36
Reversal on disposal (0.02) (0.15) (0.17) - = = ) (0.34)
As al 31 March 2025 69.06 562.62 22.20 17.69 21.38 013 693.08
Net block as at 31 March 2024 600.88 3,627.15 69.32 24.71 13.34 - 4,335.40
Net block as at 31 March 2025 580.08 3,857.95 62.06 17.92 7.95 7.80 4,533.76
Note:
1. The Company has not revalued properly, plant and equipments during the current year and previous year.
2. Reler Note 17(d) for details of property plant and equipments pledged as security.
3. Additions during lhe year Rs. Nil (31 March 2024: Rs. 115 lakhs) includes trial run expenses for bringing new factory to operations
4. Amounl of capital commitments for acquisition of PPE are disclosed in Note 38.
5. No Property, plant and equipments have been taken on leases. 4
4A. Capital work-in-progress
Particulars U it
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening balance - -
Additions during the year 86.02 115.00
Capitalised during the year* - (115.00)
Closing balance 86.02 -
*Cost of material consumed capitalised amounting to Rs. 27.63 lakhs (31 March 2024: 115 lakhs)

suliars. Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Capilal wark-In-progress 86.02 - - = 86.02
Total B86.02 - - - 86.02
Notes :

(i) There are no projects whose complelion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
(if) Capital work in progress does not include any project where activity has been suspended.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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48. Intangible assets
Particulars Software
Gross block
As at 01 April 2023 2.00
Additions during the year 1.32
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2024 3.32
Addilions during lhe year -
Disposals =
As at 31 March 2025 3.32
Accurmnulated amortisation
As at 01 April 2023 0.84
Amortisation for the year 0.95
Reversal on disposal -
As at 31 March 2024 1.79
Amorlisalion for Lhé yéar 0.84
Reversal on disposal -
As at 31 March 2025 2.63
Carrying amount {net}
Net block as at 31 March 2024 1.53
Net block as at 31 March 2025 0.69
4C, Right of use 1
Particulars L hold land Building Total
Gross block
As at 01 April 2023 269.80 71.53 341.33
Additions during the year - - -
Disposals = = -
As at 31 March 2024 269.80 71.53 341.33
Addilions during the year 408.65 78.81 487.46
Disposals - (71.53) (71.53)
As at 31 March 2025 67B.45 78.81 757.26
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2023 6.96 37.75 44,71
Depreciation for the year 3.00 23.84 26.84
Reversal on disposal = E =
As at 31 March 2024 9.96 61.59 71.55
Depreciation for the year 4.36 27.03 31.39
Reversal on disposal - (71.53) {71.53)
As at 31 March 2025 14.32 17.09 31.41
Net block as at 31 March 2024 259.84 9.94 269.78
664.13 61.72 725,85

Net block as at 31 March 2025

Note :

1. Refer note 18 for further details on lease liability.

2. Refer Note 17(d) for details of property plant and equipments pledged as security.

3. In respecl of immavable properties ihat have been taken on lease are duly execuled in favour of the Company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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5  Other ial assets non-current
Particulars

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Unsecured and considered good, valise at armortised cosi)

Security deposils 5.61 543
Bank deposits wilh original and remaining maturity more than 12 months* 86.98 112,00
92.59 117.43
~Includes pledged as security with banks (refer note 17d)
6. Nan-current tax assols (rof)
Particulars As at As at
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
income lax recoverable {net of provision) 109.19 -
109.19 -
7. Olher non-curront assels
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Capital advances 6521 21313
) with horili 830.23 670.83
BS5.44 883.96
#. Inventories
Farticulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
{Valued at lower of cosl or nef reahsable valus)
Raw materials 1,792.07 1,885.23
Work-in-progress 174.34 163.26
Finished goods 475.26 276.67
244 2,325.16
The cost of invenlories recognised as an expense during lhe year is disclosed in Nole 26 and Nole 27,
8, Trade recejvables
Farticulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unseoured, considored good 577.36 1,863.38
Unsecured, credit mpaired 40.00 -
617.36 1,863.36

40,00 =
ST7.36 1,883.56

Tradé receivables aguing schedule as-at 31 March 2025 (Qutstanding for following perieds from due date ef paymont)
B manihs - 12 23 Mare than

Less: allowance for expected credit loss

Particulars Not Cuie Less than 6 months Total
1 ywar years years 3 years

Undisputed trade recajvabloes:
considered good 318.62 241,91 0.40 - - 1643 577.36
y«hlct] have significant increase in credit risk credit . . A 40,00 . N 40.00
impaired
Total 318.62 24191 0.40 40.00 - 16.43 617.36
Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024 (Outstanding for following perjods from due date of payment)

B months - 1-2 23 More than
Particulars Not Due Loss than § months 1 year e yiar 1y Total
Undisputed trade receivables:
considered good 269.22 1,333,87 260.27 - - - 1,863.36
which have significant increase in credit risk credit - = = = - - -
impaired
Total 269,22 1,333.87 260.27 - - - 1.863.38
Note :
(i) No lrade receivables are due from directors or olher officers of the Company either severally or joinlly with any other person. Trade receivables are non-inlerest bearing.
(ii) Company does not have any disputed trade receivables,

10, Cash and cash squivalonls:

" Asat As at
ey 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance willy banks in current accounts” 3863 5029

38.63 59.29
*There are no repitrialion restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as al the end of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
11, _Bank baiances other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars Asat As ot
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Fived deposits with orfginal maturity of more than three months but less than twelve menths 4545 S00.00
45.45 500.00
12, Loans
Panticulars Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loan lo employees* 3.22 064
3,22 0.64

“No loans or advances are due from directors of the Company or any of lhem either severally or joinlly with any olher person. Further, no loans or advances are due by firms or private comparies in which any director is a

pariner, a direclor or a member.

13, Other financial asseis

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest accrued on bank deposits 39.02 42.66
Flxed deposits wilh remaining maturity of less than 12 months* 236.69 500.00
Other recoverables** 102,94 =
Less: fori i for other (5.69) -
372.96 542.66
————
“includes fixed deposits pledged wilh banks for Rs. 110 lakhs (31 March 2024 : Nil).
**Other recoverable includes the amount of recoverable on account of cross charge from related party of Rs. 27.58 Lakhs (31 March 2024 : Nil).
14, Othet current assels
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Advances o vendors 199.05 63618
Exporl incentive receivable 77.87 108.14
Prepaid expenses 1037 4.48
Balance wilth government authorities 426.53 -
713,82 748.81
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15, _Equity share capital

As at

Partizulars As at
31 March 2028 31 March 2024
{a) Autherised
5,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (31 March 2024: 5,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 500.00 500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
3,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (31 March 2024: 3,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 300.00 300.00
Reconciliation of number of shares ouistanding at the beginning and at the end of financial year:
Farliculars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Mo. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
QOpening balance 3,000,000 30000 3,000,000 300,00

Add: Equity shares issued during the year
Closing balance

{b) - Rights, p and et to equity shares

3,000,000 3064 3,000,000 300.00

The Company has only one class of equily shares having face value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares of the Company is enliled to one vole per share, The Company declares dividend in Indian Rupees.

In the event of liquidation, the holders of equity shares of the Company will be entilled to receive remaining assels of the Company, after dit of all pi ial amounts. The di ion will be in proportion of the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
{c}  Delails of shareholder holding more than 5% equity share capital.
Name of the shareholder P a.l SMEFEN 2028 A5 BB Marca 20
% of holding No. of shares % of holding No. of shares
Equily shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up hald by
100% 3,000,000 100% 3,000,000

Integris Medtech Limited (formerly known as “Integris Health Private Limited")(Holding Company')”

ding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares

* As per records of the Company, including register of sh g g

(d) DOetails of equity shares held by the promateriholding company as defined in the Companies Act, 2013

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

h of holding No. of shares % of holding No. of shares
Equity shares ol Rs. 10 each fully paid up held by
Inlegris Medtech Limited (formerly known as “integris Health Private Limited")* 100% 3,000,000 100% 3,000,000
* As per records of lhe Company, including register of sh b garding b ial interest, the above shareholding represents bolh legal and beneficial ownership of shares,

{e) There are no shares issued pursuant to contract withoul payment being received in cash, allotted as ful
reporling period.

n There has been no change in the shareholding of the promolers during the year ended 31 Mach 2025 Further,
Act, 2013

ly paid up by way of bonus shares issues and boughl back by the Company during the last five years from the

pramoters for the purpose of this disclosure means promoters as defined under section 2(69) of Companies

16.  Othor equity

Particulars

Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Retained eamings

Opening balance

Profit for lhe year

Balance ot the end of the yoar

Deemed Equity

Opening balance

ESOPs charge from Holding Company
Balance at the end of the year

Other comprehensive income

QOpening halance

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax impact)
Balance at the end of the year

Total

Nature and purpose of reserve:

Retained eamings

1,059.81 487.99
74304 571.82

1.10 -

140 =
(5.03) (0.45)
8.62 (4.58)

279 503
S F LA E — ] T

The reserve is ulilised in accordance with the provisions of the Acl.

djt within the plans.

Retained earnings are the profits lhat the Company has earned Ull date, less any transfers to divi or olher dislributions paid lo shareh
Other comprehensive income (OCI}

Itincludes impact of remeasurement gain/(losses) net of taxes on defined benefit plans on account of changes in actuarial ions or
Deemed equity

Deemed equity refers to the conlribution made by the Holding Company towards share-based payment exp 3 ized as a capilal

(This space has been intenlionally left blank)




Transhealth Private Limited
Material accounting policies information and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
CIN: U333080L2020PTCI64238
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17. Borrowings
Particulars As ot 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Men gurrent Current Non current Current

(Unsecired - at amartised cost)

Loan from Holding Company (refer note 17(a) below) 313.66 . 4,590.01 -

Loan from Related Party (refer note 17(b) below) - 4,000.00 - -

(Secured - at amortised cost)

Tarin Laan (fefer note 17 (g below) 696.16 521.26 99643 47868

Cazh credit Limit from bank {refer note 17(d) below) - 24351 = 883,00

Forelgn curtency working capitat foan (refer note 17(d) below) - 1,158.60 - 539.64
1,009.82 592337 5,506.44 1.901.32

——a —— e e

17(a) The Compary has ahilsined unsecured loan from Integris Health Private Limited (Holding Coiripany) with a sanctioned limit of 22,500 lakhs on 03 Oclobier 2023, carryng an interest rate of 8,00% p.a., repayable over a
periad of four yzars, Subsequently, this sanctioned limit was revised 10 25,000 lakhs wilh effact from 01 April 2024, at an interest rate of 10% p.a. Outstanding bafance &3 on 31 March 2025 is Rs. 313,66 lakhs (31 March
2024: 4,550.01 |akhs) -

17(b) The Company has obiained unsecured loan from Translumina Therapeutics Private Limited from T ina Therapeutics LLP w.e.f from 25 January 2025} with sanclioned limit of Rs. 4,000 lakhs on 25
January 2025 at rate of 10.00% p.arepayable over a period of 1 years Outstanding balance as on 31 March 2025 is Rs. 4,000 |akhs (31 March 2024: Nil).

17(c) Temms and cenditions of Tem loans arg as follows:

Name of lender a::r:r:l‘tl(lol:l‘;din Ra;:::':::;r“ Terms of repayment Date of maturity As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
lakhs)
Non-current Current MNon-current Curront
Cili Bank® 200 7.15% 36 equal monthly instalments of Rs. 30 March 2027 60.00 BO.00 120.00 B0

5.00 lakh each

Cili Bank* 421 8.50% 32 equal monlhly inslalments of Rs 26 October 2026 13021 223.23 35344 22323
18.60 lakh each

Cili Bank* 353 8.50% 43 equal monthly instalments of Rs. 26 September 2027 178.93 103.59 282,52 113.01
9.41 lakh each
Citi Bank* 645 8.50% 48 equal monthly instalments of Rs, 26 February 2028 158.02 82.44 240.46 8244
6.87 lakh each
Cili Bank* 500 8.50% 60 equal monthly inslalments of Rs. 18 June 2029 169.00 52.00 - -
4.33 lakh each
| Total | | 696.16 521.26 996.42 [ 479.68

* Rate of tnterest is finked with T Bill + 3 23% (T Bill+1,12%) in case ol GIT| Bank, ratz shewn above is as on-31 March, 2025,

17(d) The Company hiz been nanclianed a cash credit limit with a sub limit for farelgn currency limit also of 21 ,500 lakhs from Citi Bank, with an outstanding balance of Rs.136.22 lakhs (31 March 2024; RAs. 883 lakhs ) for
warking capilal and Rs. 1,258 60 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 539.64) for fureign currency working capital-loan and from ICICI Bank has sanclioned a cash credit limit of Rs. 200 lakhs, wiih & oltstanding balance of
Fs,107.29 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs.

17{e) Security of borrowings

MName of londer

Terms of Securit
1} Exlusive charge an current sssels, moyvabla praperly, plant and equipment’s of the Company by term laan proceeds,

21 Firel pari passu chazge on present and fulure trade receivables of the Company,

3) Cefporate Guarantee of Integris Medtech Limited {formesdy known g Infegris Health Private Limited) and Translumina Therapeutics Private Limited (converted into company w.e.f 25

January 2025)
1) First par| passu charge on current asset of the Company, exclusive charge on movable propeity, piant end equipment and fived deposi,
ina Th

2] Corporate Guarantee of Inlegris Medtech Limited (formerly known as Inlegris Health Private Limézd) and Transh peutics Privale Limited into pany w.e.f 25|
danuary 2025) .
18, Lease liabilities
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
_ Long term Sheort term Long temm Short term
Lease linbilities 44,03 25.06 - 18.88
“Q_ 2508 - 1983

Iding which s reflected as a right of use azsat 2nd lease liability (except leasehold land). There are no short term leases or varizhle lease payments, The lease of

The Company has lease far factory land and office bui
erm of 90 years. The Company's ebligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's tille 1o the leased assets. The Company is resticted from asmigning

office building has a tarm ol 3 yanrs and lease of land has a t
and subleazing the leazed asseia.

() Setout below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance 19.98 79.25
Additions 78.81 -
Accretion of inlerest {refer note 28) 433 0.74
Payments {34.04) (B0.00)
Closing balance R £5.09 19.99
- Curregnt 25.08 15.98
- Non-current 44.03 =
(i) The maturity analysis of iease liabilities are disclosed below.

A4 at 31 March 2025;

Within 1 year 1-2 yoars 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Lease liabiies 32.56 3256 008 410 7928
Interest expenss 4.02 2.5% 018 344 10.18
Nut present values 2B.54 30.04 9.88 0.66 69.09

fsal 31 March 2024:
Within 1 year 1-2 years 21 yoa Mare than 3 years Total
- 2000

Leate fiablitzs 20,00 - -
Inlerest expense 0.01 - o.m
Net present values 18.89 - = - 18.88

{iii)  The efflective rate of interest for lease liablity is 9.65% (31 March 2024 : 7%) with maturity ill 2024-25,

(iv) _The foSewing are the amounts recognized in profit or loss:
Faor the period For the year

Particulars
ended 31 March  ended 31 March
2025 2024
Depreciation expense of nght-of-use azsels {refer note 30} 339 26.84
Interest expense on lease I|abilities (refer nole 29) 433 074
Total amount recognized in profit and loss 35.72 27.58
(v}  Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2025 was Rs. 34.04 lakhs (31 March 2024 Rs. 60 lakhs )
19.  Proviskons
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

Provigion for gratuity (refer nate 33)
Provision for compensated absences




Transhealth Private Limited
Material accounting policies information and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
CIN: U33309DL2020PTC364238

20. Tratle payables
Particulars As at #s at
31 March 2026 31 March 2024

Diue to micea er ises and srmall enterpi AE) 8.94 11.58
O ing dues {o trade bles other the micro enlerprises and small enterprises 24614 582 29

255.08 £33 87
Nofes :
(i) All amounts are short term. The carrying Value of rade payables are i d to be pprecialion of fair value.

(i} Trade payables are non-inlerest bearing and are normally setiled on 15-60 days terms.

Trade payables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2025:
Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars -
Unbilled t d
e Hotgue Less than 1 year 1-2 years 23years_ More than 3 years Total

Undisputed trade payable:

(f) Micro and Small enterprises = 6.93 201 - - = 8.94
(i) Others 108,36 20.50 117.34 - - . 246.14
Tolal 108.30 27.43 119,35 = - - 25508
Trade payables ageing schedule a% on 31 March 2024:
Parficulars Quistanding for fellowing periods from dus date of payment
Unbilled Not due '
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Undisputed trade payable:
(i) Micro and Small enterprises = 9.94 164 = - = 11.58
(i) Others 35.54 20782 335.00 0,13 - = S82.25
Total 35.54 217.56 340.64 0.13 - - 593.87

= s 2200

(i) The Company does not have any disputed Irade payables as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Details of dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Az at As at

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

{1} Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED fct 8.29 10.48
(i) Intarest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above amount Interest due Ihereon 0.65 1.09
(iii) Paymenl made to suppliers {elher than interes!) beyond appointed day during the year - -
Interest pald to suppéers under MSMED Act - -
{iv) The amommt of further interest remairng due and puyable even in the succeeding years, unfi such date when the interest dues as above are aclually paid - -
to the small enterprise, for the purpose of d asa under section 23, -
() Inteyést due and payable 1o suppliers endar MSMED Aot towards payments already made - -
{vi} Intetest aceried and remaining Lnpaid at the end of the secounting year - -
(vil) The amount of further intereal remaining dus and payable even in the succeading years, untl such date when the interest dues as above are aclually paid 065 1.09
16 the small ehterprise for [he purpese of I asa under section 23 of the MSMED Acl,
The above disclosure has been determined to lhe extent such patties have been idenlified on the basis of information available wilh the Company. This has been relied upon by
Note:-
() The Company's exposure to financial risk and fair value measurement related lo these financial instrumenl_s is disclosed in Note 35 and Note 36
21.  Other financial liabilities - current
{at ameitised cost]
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Intere=t acerued bul not dus o Bairowings 88.24 340,31
Creditors for capital goods = 281
Employee related payables 110,99 46.07
Other payables* . 24.45 -
22472 3B89.19
* Other payables relates to amount of inlerest cross charge of ESOPs from Holding Company amounting to Rs 24.49 Lakhs. r
22, Other current liahififiss
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Slatulary dues payabls 4021 48.99
Advance from customers 78042 1,855.70
82063 2.004,69
= ==
23, Current tax liahifities {nol)
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provision for taxation (net of tax) - 15.19
. - 1519

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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24, Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Operating income:
Sale of products
Finished goods

A) Reconciliation of Revenue from sale of products with the contracted price
Contracted price

Less : Sales return etc.

Revenue from contract with customer

B) The disaggregation of revenue geographically:
Disaggregated Revenue

Within India

Outside India

C) Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:

Contract liabilities- Advance from customer

7,938.92 3,763.97
7,938.92 3,763.97
7.978.17 3,769.79

(39.25) (5.82)
7,938.92 3,763.97
4,268.24 1,337.08
3,670.68 2,426.89
7,938.92 3,763.97

Description

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Opening balance 1,955.70 -

Addition during the year (refer note 22) 780.42 1,955.70

Revenue recognised during the year (1,955.70) -
780.42 1,955.70

Closing balance

Contract assets

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Description
Receivables
Trade receivables (refer note 9) 617.36 1,863.36
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (40.00) -
Net receivables 577.36 1,863.36
25, Other income
watictlars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Export incentive 101.36 41.01
Interest income from banks 36.02 66.17
Foreign exchange gains (net) 139.50 13.94
Liabilities written back 0.15 6.43
277.03 127.55
26. Cost of materials consumed
Famicuigs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year 1,885.23 785.34
Add: Purchases during the year 4,646.02 2,850.30
Less: Inventory at thé end of the year 1.792.07 1,885.23
4,739.18 1,750.41
Less. Amounts capltalised towards qualifying assets in trial run production transferred from inventory (27.63) (115.00)
4,711.55 1,635.41

27 Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in- progress

Particulars
.

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Inventories at the beginning of the ygar
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

174.34
475.26

163.26
276.67
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28.

29,

30.

31A

Note 1:

Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries, wages and other benefits 836.49 566.83
Share based payment expenses 5.27 -
Contribution to provident and other funds 57.18 33.41
Staff welfare expenses 57.88 36.60
956.82 636.84
Finance costs
Particul
RS ars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Interest expense on:

- cash credit at amortised cost 431.24 612.47
- lease liabilities at amortised cost 4.33 0.74
- others 0.65 1.08
436.22 614.29
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (refer note 4) 300.19 260.85
Depreciation on right of use assets (refer note 4C) 31.38 26.84
331.58 287.69
Other expenses
D For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Forwarding expenses 18.17 14.33
Telephone and internet expense 2.64 3.13
Testing fee 3.43 3.83
Donation (CSR) (refer note 31C below) 9.05 3.96
Rates and taxes 43.28 39.50
Repair and maintenance 50.54 45.17
Royalty Expenses 60.46 -
Printing and stationery 11.24 9.81
Travelling and conveyance 5.46 1.19
Legal and professional fees (Refer note 1 below) 74.04 62.25
Loss on disposal of PPE 2.02 -
Power and fuel 84.67 65.52
Insurance 5.61 6.11
Bank charges 8.58 12.47
Allowance for expected credit loss 40.00 -
Security charges 14.29 12.07
Allowance for impairment for other recoverables 5.69 -
Management support charges (refer note 38) 177.75 31.75
Miscellaneous expenses 4.35 0.80
621.27 311.89
Includes payments to auditors (excluding applicable taxes)
As auditor
- Statutory audit 5.00 3.50
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.25 0.25
5.25 3.75

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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31B

31C

Exceptional ltems

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Inventory written off* 465.89 -
465.89 z

*The Company had performed internal quality checks and had written off certain batches, which were not as per standard output.

Details of CSR expenditure:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 9.05 3.88
(b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 9.05 3.96

{c ) Movement :
Opening balance

With Company (Budget) 9.05 3.96
In Separate CSR unspent Account - -
Total (A)
Amount required to be spent During the year (Budget for FY 25) 9.05 3.90
Amount spent during the year
From Company's Bank Account 9.05 3.96
From unspent CSR Account . - -
Total (B) 9.05 3.96

Closing Balance

With Company

In Separate CSR unspent Account
Closing balance to be spent (A-B)

(d) Excess amount spent on CSR as per Section 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013 - -
(e) Total of previous year shortfall

(f) Reason for shortfall N.A N.A
Social Welfare for ~ Social Welfare for

(9) Nature of CSR activities promoting health promoting health
care care

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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32,

(a)

(b)

{c)

()

33.

Tax expense

Particulars

For the year ended -
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current tax

Current tax (including earlier years)

Deferred tax charge

income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Accounting profit before income tax
Applicable tax rate

Tax using statutory income tax rate of 17.16%
Under/Over provision of income tax expense

Others
Income tax reported in statement of profit and loss

Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025:

129.04 113.97
30.21 60.75
159.25 174.72
902.29 746.54
17.16% 17.16%
154.83 128.11
(2.53) 39.83
6.95 6.78
159.25 174.72

Particulars
Opening balance as

on 1 April 2024

Recognised/(Reversed)
in profit or loss

Recognised/{Reversed)
in other
comprehensive income

Balance as at
31 March 2025

Deferred tax asset/ (liability) arising on account of

Property, plant and equipment (166.19) (44.27) (210.46)
Preliminary expenditure 0.27 (0.27) = (0.00)
Retirement benefits and other employee obligations 5.06 12.57 - 17.63
Lease liabilities & Right of use asset 2.65 (5.10) - (2.45)
Provision for Doubtful debt - 6.86 - 6.86
: (158.21) {30.21) - (188.42)

Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024:

Particulars
Opening balance as

on 1 April 2023

Recognised/(Reversed)
in profit or loss

Recognised/(Reversed)
in other
comprehensive income

Balance as at
31 March 2024

Deferred tax asset/ (liability) arising on account of

Property, plant and equipment (114.27) (51.92) = (166.19)
Brought forward losses 6.65 (6.65) = -
Preliminary expenditure 0.54 (0.27) - 0.27
Retirement benefits and other employee obligations 1.81 3.25 - 5.06
Lease liabilities & Right of use asset 7.80 (5.15) 2.65
(97.47) (60.74) - (158.21)

Earnings per share (EPS)
The calculation of profit attributable to e
calculation are as foliows-

quity shareholders and weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding for purpose of basic/diluted earning per share

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Profit/(loss) after tax 743.04 568.03
Nominal value of equity share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
‘Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,000,000 3,000,000
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 3,000,000 3,000,000
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic/diluted earnings per share 3,000,000 3,000,000
1) Basic eaming per equity share of Rs. 10 each (in Rs.) 24.77 18.93
24.77 18.93

2) Diluted earning per equity share of Rs. 10 each (inRs)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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34. Employee benefits

Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee is entilied to gratuity as per the provisions of the Paymenl of Graluity Act, 1972. The liability of Gratuity is recognized on

the basis of acluarial valuation

will also ncrease)

Salary increases AcIL@J s;ial‘,r increases will Increase the plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rate ption in fulure
the liability. x
| Discaunt rate Reduciion in discount rate jn sub q valuali can j ase the plan's liability. :
Morality & disability Aclual dealhs and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact (he lizhilifies,
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower Than assumed wilhdrawals and change of wilhd | rales at sub luations can
Withdrawals f 1 i .
impact plan's lability.

During lhe.current year, the Campany has provided for Compensated Absences liability based on the unavailed leave balances of employees as al the year-end, valued at the salary rates
applicable as on the reporting date The liabifity has been compuled internally withoul oblaining an actuarial valualion, as the obligation is expecled lo ba settled wholly wilhin twelve
months-afler lhe end af the reparting period.

dingly, the enlire Comp d Absences liabilily has been classified under Current Liabililies as “"Shori-term provisions", in accordance with the requirements of Schedule II!
(Divislan 1) lo the Companies Act, 2013,
Amounts gnised in the bal; sheet: Gratuily
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Currant liabilifies 0.27 0.04
Non-current liabilies 28.32 19.52
‘Gain racognised In other comprehensive incoma: G y —|
Actuarial gain on defined benefjt ns 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Acluanal losses from changes in demopraphic assumplions (12.98) -
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumplions 335 025
Experience variance {i.e. Actusl exoanence vs assumplions) (1.02) (BE1)
Total expansos recognised in ather comprehensive income (10.65) {0.36)
| Expensos recognised in statement of profit and loss Gratuity
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current service cosl 18.26 10.97
Intgrasi cost 1.42 0.62
Expenses recognised during the year | 19.68 11.59
Movemant in the liability recognised in the balance sheel is as undar: i Gratuity —|
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benehit obligation at the beginning of the year 19.56 8.32
Current service cost 18.26 1097
Interest cost 142 062
Acluarial loss/(gain) (10.65) {0.35)
Renafits paid . = =
Present value of defined benofit abligation af the end of The yoar 28,59 W‘
{a] For determination of the liability of the Company the follawing actuarial assumptions ware used:
[ i Ab Graiuily
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Marzh 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate T25% B55% 7.25%
Salary escalalion rale 10.00% 10.00% 10,00%
Reliremenl age (years) 60 Years 58 years &0 Years
Withdrawal rate 10% PA 20% PA 10% PA
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of IALM (2012 — 14)
[ (B] Maturity profile of discountod defined banafi obligation: Graluity
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1 year 027 .04
2 year 16.76 0.01
3 year 1531 0.10
4 year 15.75 022
5 year - 0.15
& year onwards - 15.06 |
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity Hability: Gratuity
Particulars: 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of cbligation al the end of the year 28.59 19.56
Impacl due lo increasa of 1.00 % (1.85) (1.83)
Impac! due lo decrease of 1.00 % 2.06 . 221
b} Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 28.59 19.56
Impacl due to increase of 1.00 % 1.98 213
Impact due to decrease of 1,00 % (1.81) (1.80)
€] Impact of the change in withdrawal rate
Presenl value of obligation al lhe end of the year 28.59 19.56
Impact due to increase of 1.00 % {10.08) (1.04)
Impact due {o decrease of 1.00 % (7.86) 1.18
Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retir and fife exp 'y are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on
refiremant

Effect of (he defined benefit plan on the Company's future cash flows:
Expedted contributian during the next annual period;
The tempany's best estimate of contribution during the next financial year approximales lo Rs.27.00 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 17.58 lakhs)

Defined contribution plan:
Conlribulion to defiriad contribulion plans, r gnised as an exp for lhe year is as under:
Employer's conlribution-ta provident and other funds Rs. 42.96 lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs, 33.41 lakhs).

35. Segment information
The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. “Manufacluring of producls®, for lhe purpose of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segmenl”,

business segment.

f Particulars India | Outside India [

Revenue 4,268.24 | 3,670.68

Revenue from majar customers:
Revenue amounting Rs. 4,031.59 lakhs, Rs 2,753.56 lakhs and Rs. 869.78 lakhs are derived from three customers, who individually accounted for 10% or more of (he tolal revenue of the

Company. ——
Previous year: Revenue amounling Rs. 1337.08 lakfis, Rs, 618, uatg.kgi\tzzo 61 lakhs, , Rs. 578,02 lakhs and are derived from four cuslomers, who individually accounted
AND/o,

or more of the tolal revenue of the Company. c“
G

\ is considered lo be the only reportable
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36. Financial instruments risk

(i) Financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as follows:

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Particulars Note
Amortised cost Amortised cost
Financial assets* =
Tradc receivables 9 577.36 1,863.36
Cash and cash equivalents 10 38.63 59.29
Other bank balances 11 4545 900.00
Loans 12 3.22 0.64
‘Olher financial assels 5and 13 465.55 BE0.09
Total financial assets 1,130.21 3,483.38
Financial liabilities*
Borrowings 17 6,933,19 11,172.88
Trade payables 20 255,08 7.487.76
Lease liabilities 18 69.09 19.99
Olher financial lizbilities 21 224.72 388.19
Total financial liabilities 7.482.08 18,069.82

“There are no financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income.

Fair values hierarchy

I'he carrying value and fair values of financial instruments by calegories are as follows:

Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost

Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 3 inputs:

. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 —l

Particulars Note 2
Amortised cost Amortised cost

Financial assets
|.oans 12 . 322 0.64
Trade receivables 9 577.36 1,863.36
Cash and cash equivalents 10 38.63 59.29
Other bank balances " 4545 900.00
Glher financial assels 5and 13 465.55 660,09
Total financial assets 1,130.21 3,483.38 |
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 6,933.19 7487.76
I'rade payables 17 255,08 593.87
L case liabililies 20 69,09 19.99
Olher financial liabilities 18 224.72 389.19
Total financial liabilities 7,482.08 8,490.81 |

Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade

ferced or liquidation sale. There are no financial assets and liabilities which are measured al fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial risk management

payables, lease liability and borrowings approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
Ihese instruments, The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is the amaunt al which the instrument could be exchanged in a current fransaction between willing parties, olher than in a

T Campany is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments, The main lypes of financial risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Ihe management of the Company monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Cempany on a continuous basis. The Company does not engage in the trading of
financial assets for speculative purposes. The most significant financial risks to which the Company |s exposed are described below; .

financial liabilities

Market risk - foreign exchange Recognised financial assets and liabilities

not denominated in Indian rupee (Rs.)

| Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credil Risk Trade receivables, cash and cash Divgrlsil?caliun of bank deposits and regular
) monitoring
equivalents, ol_her bank balances, loans and Ageing Analysis
other financial assets measured at
amortised cost
Liguidity risk . . Availability of funds and credil facilities.
Borrowings, lease liabilities and other Cash flow forecasts

Fluctuation in foreign exchange rates

Monitoring of exposure levels at regular
internal

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to changes in market

interest rales as some borrowings are at variable inferest rates.

The follawing table illustrates the sensitivity of prafit and equity 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rates of +/- 1

%. These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on

Mmanagement's assessment. The calculations are based ona change in the average market interest rate for each period, and the financial instruments held at each reporting date thal are sensitive

lo changas in interest rates. All other variables are held corstant,

Ihe exposure of Company's borrowing and interest rate at reporting period as following:
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Borrowings
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
— Non current Currant Non current Current

(Secured - at amortised cosl)

‘Term loan (refer nole 17a & 17b) 696.16 521.26 996.43 478.68

Cash credit Limit from bank ~ 243.51 - 883.00
696.16 7684.77 996.43 1,361.68

1% Increase in basis points 6.98 7.65 9.98 13.62

1% decrease in basis poinls (6.96) (7.65) (9.96) (13.62)

(b) Foreign currency risk
FForeign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The funclionat currency of the Company is Euro.
Mosl of the Company's transactions are carried out in Euro. Exposures to currency exchange rates mainly arise from the Comparny’'s overseas purchases, which is primarily denominated in EURO.

The Company has limited exposure to foreign currency risk and outstanding foreign currency éxposures are not being hedged against adverse currency fluctuation.

The unhedged foreign currency exposure is as follows -
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Amount of Amount of
. receivable/(payable)  Amountin Rs. receivable/(payable)  Amount in Rs.
Particulars . Pk . :
in Foreign currency (lakhs) in Foreign currency (lakhs)

| (lakhs) (lakhs) '
Trade Receivables .
EURO-Receivable 6.78 626.78 19.48 1,752,35
Trade Payables
EURO-Payable 041 38.11 5.01 450.60
FCNR- Borrowing

12.53 1,168.60 6.00 539.64

EURO-Payable

Foreign currency sensitivity on unhedged exposure

The following table ilustrates the foreign currency sensitivity of profit and equity with regards to the Company's financial assets and financial liabifities considering ‘all ather things being equal' and
ignoring the impacl of laxation. Il assumes a +/- 1% change of the Eura/USD exchange rate for the year ended at 31 March 2024, These are the sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign
currency exposuras inlernally to the key management Personnel and represents managemenl's assessment of the reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates. The sensilivity
analysis ineludes only oulstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items at end of sach period reported upen. A positive number indicales an increase In profit or equity and vice-versa.

1% increase / decrease in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit beforetax: i
= Impact on profit before tax

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Increase by 1 % in exchange rate 18.23 0.30
Decrease by 1 % in exchange rate (18.23) (0.30)

(c) Commodity price risk
The company can be affecled by the price voiatility of certain commodities, its operating activities require the ongoing purchase of per hypotube and therefore require a continuous supply. In of view
volalility of per hypotube the company also executes into various advance purchase conlracts.

Commodity price sensitivity
I'he following tables shows the effect of price change in hypotube.

Particulars change in yearly average effect on profit before tax effect on equity

31 March 2025

Ballon +1% -1% (2.75) 275 (2.75) 275
l-ypolube +1% -1% (10.30) 10.30 (10.30) 10.30
Particulars change in yearly average effect on profit before tax effect on equity

31 March 2024

Ballon +1% -1% (1.76) 1.76 (1.76) 1.76
Hypolube +1% -1% (10.25) 10.25 (10.25) 10.25
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36. Financial instruments risk (cont'd)

(i) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial ssset fails to meet its contractual obligallons. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each financial asset, The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. The Company monitors its exposure to credit

risk on an ongoing hasis.

(a) Credit risk exposure

Credil rsk is the risk thal & counterparty fails la discharge an obligation to the Company. The Company is operaling through a network of distributors and other distribution partners based at
ditferent locations. The Camipany is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments, for example receivables from customers. The Company's maximum exposure ta credit risk is limited to the
carrying amount of financial assets recognised al end of each reporting pericd, as summarised below: .

(i} Provision for expected credit losses

As at 31 March 2025
Rarticulars c::::r;:':?ﬂgxﬁil Expalz:::a :radll Carrying am::;::; Ln;; ::f impairment
default

Cash and cash equivalents 38.63 - 38.63
Other bank balances 45.45 - 4545
Trade receivables 617.36 40.00 577.36
Loans 3.22 - 3.22
Other financial assets 465.55 - 465.55

As at 31 March 2024

. Esu.mated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of impairment
Particulars carrying amount at .
losses provision
default
Cash and cash equivalents 58.29 - 59,29
Other bank balances 9800.00 - 900.00
Irade receivables 1,863.36 - 1,863.36
Loans 0.64 - 0.64
Olher linancial assels 660.09 - 660.09

The Company continuously monitors receivables and defaults of customers and other counterparlies, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls.
Ihe credil risk for cash and cash equivalents, other bank balance is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks and risk for other financial asset & loans is also considered

as negligible as counterparties are reputable parties.

37. Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equily capitat, securities premium and all olher equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders. The Company

includes within net debt, borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and current investmenls. The primary objeclive of the Company’s capital management is to maximise [he
sharchelder value. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Borrowings 6,933.19 7,487.76
Lease liabililies 69.09 19.99
Inlerest accrued and due on borrowings 89.24 340.31
Less : Cash and cash equivalenls (38.63) (59.29)
Net debt (A) 7,052,89 7,788.77
Tolal capital 2107.74 1,354.78
Capital and net debt (B) ] 9,160.63 9,143.55

77.0% 85.2%

Capital gearing ratio (A)/(B)
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38. Related party disclosure
!n accordance wilh the requi s of ind AS 24, 'Related Party Disclosures’, the names of the related parly where control exists/able to exercise significant
influence along with the transactions and year-end balances wilh them as identified and certified by the managemenl are given below:

Names of related parties and related party relationship
Related parties where control exjsts
Name of the rolated parly
(i) Ultimate Holding Company
Everslone Capital Partners (Il LP

(ii) Intermediate Holding Company
ECP Ill Pte. Ltd.

(iii) Holding Company .
Integris Medlech Limiled (Formerly known as Integris Health Private Limiled)

(iv) Fellow subsidiary
Translumina Therapeutics Private Limiled with effect from 25 January 2025
Transiumina Therapaulics LLP 1l 25 January 2025 .
Transvaive Heallh Privale Limited
Translumina GmbH
Adic GmbH

(v) ies of Fellow
Blue Madical Devices BV
LAMED Verlriebsgesellschaft mbH fiir medizintechnische Produkle
Translumina Medical Devices Trading L.L.C
Halemed Medical Private Limiled (w.e.f- 24 June 2025)

(vi) Key Management Personnel ('"KMP")
Mr. Gurmil Singh Chugh, Director
Mr. Vishal Sharma, Director
Mr. Vishal Goenka, Director
Mr. Indranil Mukherjee, Director

The following transactions were carried out with rafated parties in the ordinary courso of business

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Integris Health Private Limited
Corporale guarantee received 3,821.00 3,418.00
Corporale guarantee given 14,000.00 11,500.00
Loan received 1,140,00 3,695.00
Loan repaid 5,416.35 3,088.99
Interesl expense on borrowings 107.24 370.72
Management support charges 20,77 -
Share based payment expenses 527 -
Interest on discounting of share based payment expenses = -
Transtumina Therapeutics LLP
Interest on lease liabililies - ' 075
Renl expenses 25.00 30.00
Management support charges 123.05 31.75
Sale of products 4,031.59 1,337.08
Purchase of goods = 210.08
Reimbursemenl of expenses 397.93 44.45
Corporate guaranlee received = 3,419.00
Translumina Therapeutics Private Limited
Rent expenses 5.00 -
Reimbursemenl of expenses 11.56 -
Management support charges 33.93 -
Sale of producls 241.84 -
Loan Taken 4,000.00 -
Inlerest Expenses 64.66 x
Corporate Guaranlee received 3,821.00
Translumina GMBH
Sale of products 34.01 578.02
Purchase of goods - 110.04
Blue Medical Devices B.V.
Sale of producls 537 -
Other Income 27.58 -
Sale of Property, plant and equipment 4.27 -
192.27 71.92

Purchase of goods.

The foll g bal. were outstanding as at with related parties in the ordinary course of busi

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Integris Health Private Limited

Loans taken 313.66 4,590.01

Inlerast accrued bul not due on borrowings above 21,22 33365

Corporate guarantee received 3,821.00 3,419.00

Corporate guarantee given 14,000.00 11,500.00

Otlher Payable 20.69 -

Employee Stock option plan payable 472 -
1.10 »

Deemed Equity
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39.

. The transactions with ralated parties are made on terms equivalent to those Ikat prevall in arm's fength 1 jons. O

Translumina Therapeutics Private Limited

Inleres! accrued but nol due on borrowings 58.19 =
Lease liabilities 67.79 20.00
Trade payabies - 47.71
Trade receivables - 121.27
Advance from customer 498.04 -
Loan Taken 4,000,00 -
Corporate Guarantee received 3,821.00 3,419.00

Translumina GmbH
Trade receivables - 388.31
Trade payables - 104.80

Blue Medical Devices B.V.

Trade Payables 229 449
Trade Receivables 0.99 -
Olher receivable 27.58 -

Note : refer note 17{d} for delsils of corporate giver and propertins morgaged by the refated parties on bahalf of the Company,

Ing bal & the year-and are
unsecured and inieres! free excapt for the loans glven which carvy interast al arms lenglh. The selilement for these balances doours in eash, There have been no
guaraniees provided or receivad for any related party receivables or payables ofher than disclosed above. Further, the Company has nol recorded any impairmént of
receivables relating lo amounts owsd by related parties olher than those disclosed above.

. The:above information has been delermined to the extent such parties have been identified on lhe basis of information available wilh the Company and relied upon by

the auditors.
Liabilities for graluity are provided on an acluarial basis for the Group as a whole, the amounts pertaining Lo the key managemenl personnel is nol included.

. Oulslanding balances are net of TDS and including GST as applicable.

Contingent liabilities and commitments

a) Comim B

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
(il Estimated amount of coniracls remaining lo be executed on capifal account and nol providerd for

(net of capilal advances) 694,82 159.59
(ii) Expori obligation on account of concessional rate of cuslom duty availed under EPCG license

under scheme on import of capilal goods 1,928.57 4.749.60
(iii) Corporate guarantees given on behalf of Holding Company (Refer Note 37) 14,000.00 11,500.00

b} Contingent liabilities

Particulors As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Contingent liabilities, not ack ledged as debt, includ

(i) Income tax on account of disallowance/additions* 98.19 -
(ii) For bank guaranlee and others 110,00 =

*During the financial year 2024-25, Company had received a demand order daled 21 May 2025 from the Income Tax Department under the provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961, regarding lhe disallowance of lhe concessional tax rale under Section 115BAB amounting lo Rs. 99.19 lakhs (which is included in Income tax demand
above) for which the enlily has filed an appeal. '

(This space has been intentionally left biank)




Transhealth Private Limited

Material accounting palicies information and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
CIN: U33309DL2020PTC 364238

(Al amounts in Rs. [akhs, uniess othenvise stated)

40. Other statutory informations :
{1} The Company do nat have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initisted or panding against the Campany for holding any Benami property.
(i) The Company has not traded or invested in Cryplto currency or Virdual Currency during the financial yaar.
() The Company has nol been declared a wiul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance  with
the guidelines on wilful defaulters issuad by the Reserve Bark of india
(h} The Company do not have any transactions with struck off companies under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Compariies Act, 1956.
(v} The Company do nal have any charges or satisfaction which is yet o be regislered with Regisirar of Companies (ROC) beyand lhe stalulory period.
(i) The Company has not advanced or fnaned or invested funds ta any ather person or enlity, including forelgn entities (Intarmediaries) with lhe underslanding that the Intermediary shall:
a] diraclly or indirectly lend or invest In other parsens or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or an behalf of the Company (Ultimale Beneficiaries); or
b provide any guarantse, ssourity or the like to or on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries
(v The Cempany has not recaived any fund from any persan or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wriling or otherwise) that the Company
shall
#) direclly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities ldentified in any manner whatscaver by or an behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
b} provida any guarantee, securlly or the fike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(viiiy The Comparly has nat any such transaction whichis not recorded in (he books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (suich as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1981, ’

41. Financial Ratios:
The Company's objeclive when managing capital is to maintain positive cash flow position. The Company's strategy is to maintain a reasonable current ratio. The current ratio is as follows:

Particulars | Numerator | Denominator |_31March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | % Varlance | Reason for varjance ]
Currenl ralio | Current assets | Current fiabliities | 0.58 | 123 | -53% |Not Appcabla
Ratios required to be disclosed as per schedule Il
Particutars Numerator Denominator 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 % Variance Reason for variance
Debt Equily Ratio decreased on
Shareholders’ equily ( Issued account of decrease in borrowings
N Total Debt= (Cument and Non- ; = € g
Debl-equity ratio current borrowings + lease liabity) :giirg)capltal + Other 3.32 554 -40% | as compared to previous year.
Earnings available for debt service| Debl  service e rati
Debt service = (Profit before exceptional Debt Service=Finance costs 383 268 43%|increased  on thiz et ge " o'
coverage ralio item and tax + finance costs + for the year ) : decraase in finance co tac LRy
depreciation and amortisation) o e
. ., |Net Profits after taxes — Preference| . o -
Return on equity ratio Dividend {f any) Average Shareholder's Equily 0.43 0.53 -18% | Nol Applicable
Costlof goods sold= (Cost af Average Inventory =(average Inventory lumov_er ratio dgmase on
Inventory turnover materials consumed+ Changes in S B the account of increase in cost of
. ; ; X of Opening inventory+Closing 1.89 0.81 -134% N
ratio inventeries of finished goods and, inventory) goods sold during ther year as
work-n-progress) i compare to previous year.
i . _ Average Accounts Receivabla Trade receivables lumover ratio)
eranﬁ:(;::;fb'es ye;ra(i{::;l Sales = Revenue from|_ (Average of opening and 6.51 2.69 -142% |increase on the account of increase
P and closing trade receivables) in revenue significantly.
Trade payables tumover ratio
Trade payaple,s Nell Credit Purchases = Purchases Average Trade Payables 10.95 6.11 799 |INCrease on the account of increase|
turnover ratio during the year in  purchases as compare la
pravious year.
. L Working Capital = ( Total Dacrease in net capital turraver]
:ilocap"al luioves seéraliislses Revenue  from current assets - Total current (2.59) y 3.34 -178%|ratioc on the accounling negative
P liabilities) working capital
Decrease in Nel profit ratio by 38%,
Net profit ratio Nel Profit for the year Revenue from operalion 0.09 0.15 -38%|Due to increase in cost of goods
sold and olher expenses
Return on cagilal N . N Increase due to increase in 23rning
ermplayé Earning before interest and taxes Capital Employed 048 0.19 153% befare Inferesl and taxes,
Return on nvestment A NA A NA - ]

42. As per Section 128 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounls) Rules, 2014 with reference to use of accounting software by the Company for
maintaining ils books of account, has a feature of recording audil trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when
such change were made and ensuring Lhat the audit trail cannot be disabled is applicable wilh effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023, Further the audit trail shall be preserved by
lhe Company as per the stalutory requirements for record retention.

The Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2024, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a fealure of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that the audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for
accounting software to log any direct data changes, used for maintenance of all accounting records by the Company. )

The Company uses another accounling software for maintenance of payroll records which is operaled by a third-party software service provider. As per the ‘independent Service Auditor's Report

on a Description of the Service Organizalion’s System and the Suitability of the Design and Operating Effectiveness of Controls' SOC 2 Report, the audit trail (edit log) feature for any direct

changes made at lhe dalabase ievel and changes made at application level was operating throughoul the period for all relevant transactions recorded in the software

Further, there were no instances of audit lrail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention for all

accounling softwares excepl for the accounting software used for maintenance of payroll records of the Company.

43. Pur lransfer pricing legisiation under section 92-33F of the Income Tax Act 1861, the compary Is required to use cerain specific methods in computing arm's length price of international
Iransactions with associated enferprises and maintains adeguate documentation in this respect. The legislations require that such Information and documentation lo be contemporaneaus in
nature. The Company has appointed independent consultants for conducting the Transfer Pricing Study to determine whather the transactions with assocjated enterprises undariake during fhe
linancial yoar are on an "arm's length basis”. The company is in the process of conducting a lransfer pricing study for the current financial period and expects such records o be in existence
latast by the due dale as required by law. However, in the opinion of the managernent the update would not hava a material Impact on these financial statements. Accordingly, these financial
slatements do nol include any adjustments for the transfer pricing implications, if any.
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44. Previous year figures have been presented for the purpose of comparison and have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary.

Ihese are lhe material accounting policy information and other explanatory information referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker. Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
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